
 

 

PORT COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 8, 2023, 8:30 A.M. 

100 E STREET 
COLUMBIA CITY, OR 97018 

 
The Port Commission Meeting will be in person. In accordance with state law, the meeting will be accessible 

via telephone or Zoom. Members of the public may attend the meeting electronically by: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89228289237 

 
Call-In (253) 215-8782 Meeting ID: 892 2828 9237 Passcode: 069413 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER (President, Robert Keyser) 
A. Flag Salute 
B. Roll Call 

II. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

III. CONSENT AGENDA (The Board has agreed to implement a Consent Agenda. 
Implementation of the Consent Agenda means that all items marked with an asterisk 
(*) are adopted by a single motion unless a Member of the Board requests that such 
item be removed from the Consent Agenda and voted upon separately. Generally, 
Consent Agenda items are routine in nature and enable the Board to focus on other 
matters on the Agenda.) 
A. * Approval of Minutes; October 25, 2023            pg. 3  
B. * Financial Reports; October 2023     pg. 6 
C.* Approval of October Check Register (A) and   pg. 8 

electronic payments in the total amount of $408,352.64. 
 

IV. COMMENTS FROM VISITORS  
(Limited to 2 min. per person unless prior authorization is obtained) 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS       
A. Marina Update                              Miriam House & Lacey Tolles 
B. Airport Update Amy Bynum  

No pending Through the Fence (TTF) applications  
C. Lignetics/Neighbors Update          Sean Clark 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS     

A. Financial Update                                                     Guy Glenn, Jr.              
B. Resolution 2023-29                pg. 13                         Miriam House 

RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2023-22 AND APPROVING THE SELECTION OF 
DR. ROOF, INC. FOR SCAPPOOSE AIRPORT HANGAR A AND HANGAR B 
ROOFING PROJECT 

Page 1 of 30 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89228289237?pwd=RThBb3ZGakRmNTYyblUySHVyc2VlUT09


 

 

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

VIII. COMMISSIONER REPORTS  

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board will hold an Executive Session to deliberate with persons designated to negotiate real 
property transactions under ORS 192.660 (2)(e) and to consider exempt public records, including 
written legal advice from Port General Counsel, which is privileged under ORS 40.225, exempt 
from disclosure under ORS 192.355(9)(a), pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f). 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 
Next Regularly Scheduled Meetings Upcoming Events 
Nov. 22 Commission Work Session (TBD)                      Nov. 27 at 11:30 a.m. Agricultural Comm. Mtg 

   Dec. 13 at 8:30 a.m. Commission Mtg.                       Nov. 27 at 5:00 p.m. Airport Advisory Mtg 
  
   
  
 

Agenda times and order of items listed are estimated and are subject to change 
without notice. This facility is ADA-accessible. If you need special 

accommodation, please contact the Port office at (503) 397-2888 or TTY (800) 
735-1232, at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to ORS 192.640 (1) the Port of Columbia County Commission reserves the right to consider and discuss, in 
either Open Session or Executive Session, additional subjects which may arise after the agenda is published. 

Page 2 of 30 



 

 

COMMISSION WORK SESSION 
MINUTES 

OCTOBER 25, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
100 E STREET 

COLUMBIA CITY, OR 97018 
 

The Port of Columbia County held a Board meeting at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 25, 2023 
at the Port office and via Zoom video conferencing with the following present: 
 
Commissioners   Staff    
Robert Keyser  President  Sean P. Clark Executive Director 
Brian Fawcett Vice President  Amy Bynum Real Estate & Bus. Dev. Mgr. 
Nancy Ward 2nd Vice President  Robert Salisbury Port General Counsel 
Nick Sorber Treasurer  Bob Gadotti  (Zoom) Executive Finance Mgr. (Ret.) 
Chip Bubl Secretary  Guy Glenn, Jr. Executive Finance Mgr. 
   Elliot Levin N. County Terminal Mgr. 
Guests   Gina Sisco External Affairs Mgr. 
Scott Keillor WSP  Elizabeth Millager 

(Zoom) 
Operations Coordinator 

Doug De Vries WSP (Zoom)  Susan Tolleshaug 
 (Zoom) 

Administrative Asst. 

Todd Chase FCS Group (Zoom)  Christa Burns Administrative Asst. II 
Tim Wood FCS Group (Zoom)   
Jasmine Lillich (Zoom)   
Natasha Parvey NXTClean (Zoom)   
Suzie Glenn Clackamas Citizen   
Tom Gordon    
Kyle M.    

   
President Robert Keyser called the Port of Columbia County Commission Meeting to order at 8:00 p.m. All 
Commissioners were present. 
  
Additions To Agenda  
Robert Keyser asked the Commission if there were any additions to the agenda. There were no 
additions. Mr. Keyser said there is no public comment scheduled, but the public can comment on Agenda 
items.  
 
Strategic Business Plan Workshop/Update 
Port Executive Director Sean Clark introduced Scott Keillor, Senior Vice President and Planner from WSP. 
Mr. Keillor gave a PowerPoint presentation on the status of the Port’s Strategic Business Plan (SBP) 
including the initial findings and the next steps in the SPB process. He thanked the Port Commission for 
their contributions and stated the Strategic Business Plan update is an opportunity to advance the Port 
over the next 5-10 years. First, Mr. Keillor summarized the results of the Strengths, Weaknesses, 
Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) Analysis from the kickoff meeting with the Commission on Aug. 9, 
2023. Some of the Port’s strengths include access to the Columbia River and I-5, quality of life in Columbia 
County, available industrial land, a diverse portfolio of facilities, affordable and clean power availability, and 
the Port’s status as a deep-water port. The Port’s weaknesses include outdated infrastructure, limited 

Page 3 of 30 



 

 

technology, Oregon’s overall business climate, shared locational advantages with competition, lack of 
workforce, childcare and housing, and lack of commercial amenities. For opportunities, the Port has the 
Oregon Manufacturing Innovation Center (OMIC) and Portland Community College (PCC), vacant Port 
facilities, rezoning at Port Westward, available industrial land, room for infrastructure improvements, and 
building speculative buildings. Some threats include aging infrastructure (especially existing docks), costs 
of deferred maintenance at the airport and marina, supply-chain disruptions, inflation, climate change, and 
data management and cyber-security. WSP interviewed eight stakeholders identified by the Port for their 
feedback on their top strategic priorities of the Port. The stakeholders believe the Port’s role is to serve as 
an economic catalyst to support the local economy and job growth and the Port is currently on track for 
fulfilling its mission. The Port also received community input from two open houses in October and through 
an online survey. Approximately 100 people have responded so far, and the survey will run through the 
end of October. 
 
Tim Wood, FCS Group, provided a market analysis which gave an economic overview of job growth and 
employment by industry in Columbia County, and specifically within the Port district. Mr. Wood shared 
some highlights of the market analysis, including Columbia County’s record high population, income, and 
employment in 2022-23 despite an overall population decrease in Oregon. The state’s economic growth 
remains among the highest in the nation over the past few years, with the annual Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) up 9.8% in 2021 and 2022, while low employment and high interest rates are constraining near-
term growth in the nation and region. Columbia County has a diverse business climate supported by various 
transportation assets including the river, highway, rail and air accessibility, and a regional labor force.  A 
mix of light and heavy industrial, commercial, and recreational job growth is expected to bring 4,211 to 
10,994 net new jobs to Columbia County over the next 20 years.  
 
Todd Chase, FCS Group, presented a fiscal analysis showing the monetary impact of Port-related business 
on the local and regional economy, which has supported 1,429 Port-dependent jobs and generated $69.5 
million in labor income in 2022. Doug De Vries, FCS Group, discussed an assessment of the Port’s 
facilities, including public street, rail and marine access, sanitary sewer, electrical power, potable water, 
natural gas, stormwater, and buildings/structures. Recommendations were made on future projects and 
improvements at each facility as follows: Scappoose Bay Marina dredging and expansion; Bayport RV Park 
expansion; building demolition, dock inspection, and site development in Columbia City; Industrial Way 
design, rail spur maintenance, and possible industrial development at McNulty Creek; Milton Creek 
property acquisition and site development; Port maintenance shop construction, site development along 
Old Portland Road, and rail spur maintenance at Multnomah Industrial Park; Bailey Bridge replacement 
and Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) remediation at Railroad Corridor; roof repairs, paint 
removal and repainting, and demolishing or repurposing at Clatskanie Business Center; and, increasing 
dock capacity, NEXT Renewable Fuels development, west dolphin replacement, water intake system 
upgrade, Hermo Road access completion, and seismic resiliency at Port Westward. 
 
Next, Mr. Keillor invited the Port Commission and staff to provide their input on the Port’s vision and mission 
statements. The Commissioners brainstormed some key values and guiding principles they believe to be 
important to the future success of the Port. Some of the qualities discussed include economic growth and 
return, community leadership, supporting local business, facilitating innovation, environmental and 
economic stewardship, accountability, transparency, and a future-forward outlook.  
 
Lastly, Mr. Keillor provided a timeline for the next steps in the process. In December 2023, WSP and FCS 
Group will draft the SBP based on the initial findings and feedback from the Port Commission and the local 
community. This will include the Port’s revised vision and mission statement, priority projects and policies. 
The Port will hold another open house in December and a second Commission workshop in early 2024 to 
present the draft SBP and solicit additional feedback from the Port and the community. The final SBP will 
be delivered in February 2024. 
 

Page 4 of 30 



 

 

Lignetics/Neighbors Update  
Sean Clark, Port Executive Director, informed the Commission that he sent a letter to Lignetics on October 
23 stating the Port would like to partner with them on a solution to the ongoing neighborhood concerns, 
specifically the timeline for project completion. A copy of the letter was also sent to local resident Jan 
Schollenberger on October 25 and Mr. Clark will follow up. The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
will do an unannounced inspection before the end of the year. The Commission discussed the DEQ 
complaint process and asked if there had been a legitimate complaint filed. Port General Counsel, Robert 
Salisbury, explained that the 2022 DEQ annual report was not completed until April 2023. Mr. Clark stated 
he will find out more information on the steps involved in the DEQ complaint process and mentioned the 
possibility of the Port having some testing done. Chip Bubl stated it would make more sense for DEQ to do 
their own testing. Brian Fawcett commented that the letter to Lignetics was well-written, supportive of the 
community, and offered help to the tenant to solve the problem. The other Commissioners nodded in 
agreement that the Lignetics Letter was very well-written by Mr. Clark.   
 
Commissioner Reports 
Brian Fawcett said the Strategic Business Plan process is very useful and he looks forward to seeing the 
outcome. Nancy Ward agreed. 
 
Executive Director’s Report  
Provided and read by Sean Clark. The Report is on file at the Port Office.   
 
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE COMMISSION THE MEETING ADJOURNED 
AT 7:43 P.M.   

 
 

                                                                                       November 8, 2023  
    
President        Date Adopted by Commission     
    
                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                       

 
Secretary  
 
 
  

Page 5 of 30 



 

 

 
Finance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 7 of 30 



 

 

Check 

Page 8 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 9 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 10 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 11 of 30 



 

 

 
 
  

Page 12 of 30 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
    Res. 2023-29 
STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  November 8, 2023 
TO:  Commission Board 
FROM: Miriam House, Operations Manager 
RE: Scappoose Airport Hangar A and B Roofing Project  
 $176,230, with 10% contingency for total of $193,853 
 
Discussion 
The Scappoose Airport Hangar A and Hangar B buildings are leaking and have ongoing 
condensation problems inside. These buildings house Air Sense Avionics and Precision 
Composites.  The old metal roofs have been repaired multiple times in the past and have 
deteriorated to the point where replacement is necessary. Funds for this project were included in 
the 2023-2024 budget. Contractors are required to be certified in the installation process for PVC 
membrane roofing making is a personal services contract.  
 
Port staff solicited contractors and received six quotes.  After review and evaluation, the Port 
Commission approved Resolution 2023-22 and the selection of USA Roofing on August 9, 2023.  
However, this firm was unable to fulfill the contract requirements because they had not included 
in their bid the cost for bond requirements, which raised the quote by $28,000.   
 
Staff have since re-engaged with the next two most qualified contractors and selected Dr. Roof, 
Inc. at a cost of $176,230.00, an increased cost of only $6,314.00 over the previously selected 
contractor. Dr. Roof was able to lower their initial quote, which enabled us to add a more robust 
gutter system for this slight increase. A contract with Dr. Roof, will also include our standard 10% 
provision for potential change orders and charges for addressing any additional work discovered 
as the project progresses.  
 
Recommendation 
Adopt Resolution 2023-29, to rescind Resolution 2023-22 and authorize a contract with Dr. Roof, 
Inc. for installation of a new roof system on Hangar Buildings A and B at Scappoose Airport with 
a 10% contingency for not to exceed total of $193,853.00. 
 
 
 
 
 

Scappoose Airport  
Hangars A and B  

and Hangar B Roofing 

Page 13 of 30 



 

 

 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29 

 
A RESOLUTION TO RESCIND RESOLUTION 2023-22 AND APPROVE THE 
SELECTION OF DR. ROOF, INC. FOR SCAPPOOSE AIRPORT HANGAR A 

AND HANGAR B ROOFING PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, the roofs of the Hangar A and Hangar B buildings at Scappoose Airport are leaking 
and have deteriorated to the point where replacement is needed. The cost of the project was included in 
the 2023-2024 budget; and  

 
WHEREAS, Port staff solicited contractors pursuant to Port rules and received six quotes. The 

Commission approved USA Roofing on August 9, 2023, pursuant to Resolution 2023-22; however, USA 
Roofing did not bid the project correctly which resulted in a significant increase in cost above the amount 
of the other, lower quotes, and 

 
WHEREAS, Port staff re-engaged with the two most qualified, lowest responsive bidders and after 

a review process selected Dr. Roof, Inc. with a quote of $176,230.00. Staff recommends Dr. Roof, Inc. for 
this project; now, therefore,  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Columbia County:  
 
The Board hereby rescinds Resolution 2023-22 and authorizes the Executive Director or his 

designee to execute a contract for the Hangar A and Hangar B roofing work at Scappoose Airport with Dr. 
Roof, Inc., in the amount of $176,230.00 with a 10% contingency for additional costs, for a not-to-exceed 
total of $193,853.00. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of November 2023, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: _____             NAYS: _____  Port of Columbia County 
ABSTAIN: ______ 

 
By:  __________________________ 
 President 

Attested By: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 15 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 16 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 17 of 30 



 

 

 

Page 18 of 30 



 

 

 Page 19 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 20 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 
 

Dr Roof Inc. Re-Roof Proposal
  

  
 

 

Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport Rd. 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

 

 
Prepared By: Shawn Bowen - Cell (509)821-

 
 
 

Port of Columbia Airport Building A&b 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Resolution 2023-29 

Page 21 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

0053  
Date: 10-13-2023 

Page 22 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport Rd. 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 
 
 

The existing roof system is corrugated metal roof panels with exposed fasteners. 

These panels are installed direct to steel purlins. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Existing Roof System 

Page 23 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 

Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport 
Rd. 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 

(Green highlighted area included in scope of work) 
 

Roof Plan 

Page 24 of 30 



Roof Photos 

1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 

Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport 
Rd. Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 30 



Roof Photos 

1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport 
Rd. Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 30 



Roof Photos 

1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport 
Rd. Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 30 



1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport Rd. 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
 

60 Mil Duro-Tuff PVC Membrane (Retro-fit 
Application) 

 
 

-Clean existing roof surface of debris and blow off roof surface before installing new system. 

-Install Flute filler to match the existing metal panels. 

-Install 2" Iso board over the top of the flute filler to create a smooth surface. 

-Install 2x4 lumber on all perimeter eaves per manufacturer specifications. 

-Install one layer of 1/4" Dens deck over the Insulation board (Class A fire Rating) 

-Mechanically fasten the Dens deck. 

-Install Duro-Last PVC membrane over the Dens Deck. 

-Membrane will be mechanically attached and all seams will be hot air welded to meet man- 
ufacturer's specifications. 

-Install one walk pad (30"x60") per rooftop for safe access onto roof from ladder. 

-Factory made outside corners will be used on all corners as needed. 

-Install new PVC anti-condensation breather vents per manufacturer's specifications. 

-Install new stack flashings on all pipes and seal as needed. 

- Prob all seams and details to ensure a watertight seal. 

-Clean up and haul away any debris caused by the roofing and repairs. 

-Duro-Last inspection to be completed by manufacture (Inspection for Warranty 
Certification) 

-Dr Roof Inc. to obtain permits and basic engineering for the re-roof project. Permit and En- 
gineering cost to be added to the invoice plus 15% service fee. 

Roof Scope of Work 

Page 28 of 30 



Pricing / Alternates / Unit Costs 

1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
Port of Columbia County 
53770 Northeast Airport 
Rd. Scappoose, OR 97056 

 
Cost: 

Retro-fit Duro Tuff 60mil: $ 155,245.67 (15-year NDL Warranty through Duro-

Last) (Building A and B) 

BG7 Gutter system (Continuous run) $18,109.59 (Recommended Gutter system) 
*Includes both buildings 

Engineering and permit fees up to $2500.00 plus 15% = $2875.00 

Port to pya 50% performance bond fee not to exceed $2643.00 

 

Qualifications: 
• Quote is Valid Through 11/15/23—No price escalation or protection. 
• We may require a Hazardous Material report or Good Faith Letter. 
• If damaged decking / substrate is discovered we will replace the damaged wood on a Time and 

Material Basis. It is the Owners responsibility to either approve Dr Roof to replace or provide alter- 
native replacement in a timely manner and in sufficient time for the area to be brought into a water- 
tight condition before the end of the work day. 

• Our proposal does not include any guarantee, for or against, or provide for proper ventilation which, 
without, could lead to condensation. In addition, we do not assume any design liability in these areas. 
Condensation and associated damage is not covered by either the Contractor or Manufacturer's 
warranties. 

 
 
 

• All Wood Work unless listed. 
• Interior work of any kind including cleaning and protection 
• Installation over buried components on the deck surface 
• Hazardous Material testing and abatement, Demolition other than listed 
• Electrical, Plumbing and Mechanical work 
• Correction of roof slope or ponding water conditions 
• Shop and As-Built Drawings 
• Permits, Bonds, Code Compliance and Upgrades 
• Fume Mitigation, Dust Control, Water reclamation 
• Condensation Mitigation / Venting Revision 

Page 29 of 30 



Pricing / Alternates / Unit Costs 

1311 NE 144th St. Vancouver, WA 98685 Ph. 360-852-8884 WA License DRROOI*990QT / 
OR 157159 

 

 

 
 

   Port of Columbia County 53770 
Northeast Airport Rd.  

   Scappoose, OR 97056 
 
 

Exclusions: 
 
 
• All Wood Work unless listed. 
• Interior work of any kind including cleaning and protection 
• Installation over buried components on the deck surface 
• Hazardous Material testing and abatement, Demolition other than listed 
• Electrical, Plumbing and Mechanical work 
• Correction of roof slope or ponding water conditions 
• Shop and As-Built Drawings 
• Permits, Bonds, Code Compliance and Upgrades 
• Fume Mitigation, Dust Control, Water reclamation 
• Condensation Mitigation / Venting Revision 
• Unforeseen Conditions 

 

Page 30 of 30 


	PORT COMMISSION MEETING
	NOVEMBER 8, 2023, 8:30 A.M.
	100 E STREET
	The Port Commission Meeting will be in person. In accordance with state law, the meeting will be accessible via telephone or Zoom. Members of the public may attend the meeting electronically by:

	II. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA
	COMMISSION WORK SESSION MINUTES
	OCTOBER 25, 2023, 6:00 P.M.
	100 E STREET

	Discussion
	Recommendation

